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Proceeding under Section 309(g)(2)(jip 
ofthe Clean Water Act ;;::~ 

EPA Docket No. CWA-03-2013-0124 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

I. PRELIMINARt STATEMENT and STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

1. This Consent Agreementlis entered into by the Director, Water Protection Division, 
United States Environmental Pro

1

tection Agency, Region III ("Complainant"), and Respondent, 
Baltimore County, pursuant to Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and 
the Consolidated Rules of Practibe Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 
Issuance of Compliance or CorrJctive Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or 
Suspension of Permits ("Consoli'Jiated Rules''), 40 C.P.R. Part 22. The authority to settle this 
matter has been delegated to the kegional Administrator pursuant to delegation no. 2-52-A 
(9/1105). The parties have agree1 to settlement of alleged violations of the Clean Water Act by 
Respondent. This Consent Agreement and accompanying Final Order (jointly "CAPO") 
simultaneously commence and cJnciude this action pursuant to 40 C.P.R.§ 22.13(b) and 
22.18(b)(2) & (3). I 
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2. Pursuant to Section 309(g~ of the Clean Water Act ("CW A" or "Act"), 33 U.S.C. § 
1319(g), and the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.P.R. Part 19, any 
person violating the CWA is liable for an administrative penalty under Section 309(g) of the Act, 
in an amount not to exceed $16,obo per day for each day of violation, up to a total penalty 
amount of$177,500. 

II. FINDINGS OF FACTS, JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS 
AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

3. Baltimore County, Maryljnd ("Respondent" or "County") is a "person" within the 
meaning of Section 502(5) of the k.ct, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5). 
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4. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent has owned and/or operated a 
municipal separate storm sewer system ("MS4") as that term is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 
122.26(b )(8). 

5. Respondent's MS4 is loaated within the geographic boundaries ofthe County. 

6. Baltimore County encmlpasses a total area of approximately 384,825 acres. According 
I 

to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of2010, the county's population was estimated at approximately 
800,000 people. \ 

7. Stormwater from the Cohnty drains to a number of water bodies, including the Baltimore 
Harbor, Back River, Lower Gunpowder River, Middle River, Patapsco River and the Chesapeake 
Bay, in addition to numerous small tributary creeks and streams, which are considered "waters of 
the United States" within the md

1

aning of Section 502(7) ofthe Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7); 40 
C.F.R. § 232.2; 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

8. Section 30l(a) of the AJ 33 U.S.C. § 13ll(a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant 
I 

(other than dredged or fill material) from a point source into waters of the United States except in 
compliance with a permit issued\ pursuant to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System ("NPDES") program under Section 402 ofthe Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. 

9. Section 402(a) ofthe Ac~, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), provides that the Administrator ofEPA 
may issue permits under the NPIDES program for the discharge of pollutants from point sources 
to waters of the United States. llhe discharges are subject to specific terms and conditions as 
prescribed in the permit. 

I 0. "Discharge of a pollutantj' includes "any addition of any pollutant or combination of 
pollutants to waters ofthe Unite1 States from any point source." 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

11. "Storm water" is defined\ as "storm water runoff, snow melt runoff and surface runoff 
and drainage." 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(13). 

12. The tenn "municipal sep~ate stonn sewer system" ("MS4') includes, "a conveyance or 
system of conveyances (including roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, 
curbs, gutters, ditches, manmade \channels, or storm drains) owned or operated by a State, city, 
town, borough, county, parish, di
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strict, association, or other public body (created by or pursuant 
to State law) having jurisdiction mver disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, storm water, or other 
wastes, including special district~ under State law such as a sewer district, flood control district 
or drainage district, or similar entity, or an Indian tribe or an authorized Indian tribal 
organization, or a designated and I approved management agency under section 208 of the CWA 
that discharges to waters of the tited States." 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(8)(i). 

13. An NPDES permit is req~ired for discharges from an MS4 serving a population of 
100,000 or more, Section 402(p)(2)(C) ofthe Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(p); 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(a), 
40 C.F.R. § 122.21. 

14. Respondent's MS4 serves a population of at least 100,000 people. 



I5. Pursuant to Section 402~b) ofthe Act, 33 U.S.C. § I342(b), EPA authorized the 
Maryland Department ofthe En~ironment ("MDE") to issue NPDES permits on September 5, 
I974. 

16. MDE issued to Respondent a NPDES MS4 Discharge Permit No. MD0068314, which 
became effective on June 15, 20b5 (hereinafter the "MS4 Permit"). 

17. The expiration date ofthle MS4 Permit was June 15, 2010; however, the MS4 Permit has 
been administratively extended pending a final decision on the renewal application. 

18. An NPDES permit is alsl required for discharges of storm water associated with 
industrial activity, as well as for\stormwater discharges which MDE or EPA determine to be a 
significant contributor of pollutants or that contributes to a violation of a water quality standard. 
Section 402(p)(2) ofthe Act, 331U.S.C. § 1342(p)(2); 40 C.P.R.§ 122.26(a), 40 C.P.R.§ 122.21. 

19. On December I, 2002, MDE issued a General Discharge Permit for Storm Water 
I 

Associated with Industrial Activities ("Industrial SW Permit"). The permit also covers storm 
water discharges determined to Be significant contributor of pollutants. The permit was set to 
expire on November 30, 2007, bht it has been administratively extended. 

20. On March 8 - 9, 20 II, a ~ompliance inspection team comprised of authorized 
representatives of EPA inspected Respondent's MS4 program (the "MS4 Inspection"). 

21. The MS4 Inspection idenlified a number of violations of Respondent's NPDES permit 
and the CWA as described below. 

Count I: Paillure to Adequately Address Illicit Discharges 

22. Part III.E.4 of the MS4 Ptmit requires that the County maintain a program to detect and 
eliminate illicit discharges. At a binimum, the program shall address illegal dumping and spills, 
and include appropriate enforceclent procedures for investigating and eliminating illegal 
discharges and dumping. 

23. The March 2011 Inspectipn revealed that Respondent did not implement an adequate 
program to address illicit discharges through the failure to: ·. 

a. Inform and educate the public employees, businesses, and the general public of 
the hazards associated with illegal discharges; and 

b. Train municipal Jaff, including field employees on illegal discharge 
identification and reportin~ procedure. . 

c. Although the couJty has established procedures for tracking and reporting illegal 
discharges complaints recbived by the County's Watershed Monitoring section of the 
Department ofEnvironmehtal Protection and Sustainability, the County has no 
procedures to assure that domplaints received by other County agencies are adequately 
responded to. 



d. The County has ~ot identified or addressed illegal discharges from county-owned 
facilities, as evidenced br facilities that conduct vehicle washing on impervious surfaces 
in the absence of best management practices and protective measures in which wash water 
was seen or evidenced ebtering into the storm sewer systems. These facilities included 
the County Department ~[Education's Cockeysville Service Center and North Point Bus 

I 

Facility and the County Department of Public Works Perry Road Facility. 

24. Respondent's failure to 1aintain an adequate program for detecting and eliminating illicit 
discharges violates the MS4 Pertnit and Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

Count II: Failure tl Develop and Implement Pollution Prevention Plan 

25. Part lll.E.5 of the MS4 Jfnnit requires that County identify all 2ounty-owned facilities 
requiring Industrial SW permit coverage, and submit the application for such coverage. The 
County must report on the status of pollution prevention plan development for these facilities. 

26. MOE has authorized covf.rage under the Industrial SW Permit for the stormwater 
discharges of several county faci\lities operated by the Baltimore County Department of 
Education, determining that sucH discharges can be significant contributors of pollutants. 

27. MDE authorized such coterage for the Kenwood Bus Facility, 6rio Stemmers Road, 
Baltimore, Maryland, under registration number 02SW2115. ,, 

28. MOE authorized such coLrage for the Cockeysville Service Cen~er, 101 Wight A venue, 
Cockeysville, Maryland, under r~gistration number 02SW2121. 

29. MOE authorized such colerage for the Hopkins Creek Bus Lot, 104 Weber Avenue, 
Baltimore, Maryland, under regi~tration number 02SW2122. 'i : 

30. The Industrial SW Permij requires the permittee to develop and i~plement a stormwater 
pollution prevention plan (S WPPP) that includes a description of potential sources of pollutants 
and stormwater management controls appropriate for the facility. 1

! , 

31. The County has not develbped a SWPPP for the Kenwood Bus FJc~lity. 
32. The County has not develbped a SWPPP for the Cockysville Serv1~ce Center. 

I I 

33. The County has not developed a SWPPP for the Hopkins Creek Bus Lot. 

34. Respondent's failure to d~velop and implement SWPPPs for thes~ ;acilities are violations 
ofthe General Industrial SW Pe1it and Section 301 ofthe Act, 33 U.S.l. ~ 1311. 

Coumt III: Failure to Enclose Salt Piles I ·. 

35. Part III.E.5 ofthe MS4 PJmit requires that County identify all C~u~ty-owned facilities 
requiring Industrial SW Permit cdverage, and submit the application for such coverage. 
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36. MDE has authorized co~erage under the Industrial SW Permit for the stormwater 
discharges from the Kenwood ~us Facility, 600 Stemmers Road, Baltimore, Maryland, which 
operated by the Baltimore County Department of Education, under registration number 
02SW2115. I i! 
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3 7. The Industrial S W Permit requires that storage piles of salt be eqclosed or covered to 
prevent exposure to precipitatio~. I i

1 

38. The inspectors observed several stockpiles of roadway salt at the. Kenwood Bus Facility 
that was exposed to precipitation. The inspectors observed traces of salt residue from one 
stockpile leading to a ditch outsi~e the facility. \ ! 

I__ I ! 

39. Respondent's failure to e
1

nclose or cover the salt piles at Kenwood Bus Facility is a 
violation ofthe Industrial SW Permit and Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

I I 

CONSENT AGREEMENT \, i 
I ! 
I , 

III. 

40. Respondent neither admits nor denies the Findings ofFact and Conclusions of Law set 
forth in Section II, above, and w~ive any defenses it might have as to jurisdiction and venue. 

I I I 

41. Respondent admits the ju~isdictional allegations and agrees not tJ don test EPA's 
jurisdiction to issue and enforce this CAFO. l'j

1 

42. Respondent hereby exprelsly waives its right to a hearing or other proceeding on any 
issue oflaw or fact in this matter\ pursuant to Section 309(g) ofthe CWA~ 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), 
and consent to issuance of this d<\.Fo without adjudication. 1 

1

; 

43. Each party shall bear its dwn costs and attorney fees. I 

44. The provisions ofthis C~FO shall be binding upon the Respondebi, its officers, 
principals, directors, successors Jnd assigns. II 
45. The parties agree that sett~ement of this matter prior to the initiation of litigation is in the 
public interest and that entry ofttlis CAFO is the most appropriate means!ofresolving this 
matter. I [I 

I ! 
46. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4)(A) ofthe Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(4)(A), and 40 C.F.R. § 
22.45(b), EPA is providing publi~ notice and an opportunity to comment pn this CAFO prior to 
issuing the Final Order. In addition, pursuant to Section 309(g)(l )(A), EPA has consulted with 
the MDE regarding this action, a}1 d will mail a copy of this document to the appropriate 
Maryland officials. I 

47. Based upon the foregoing rnd having taken into account the nature, !circumstances, extent 
and gravity of the violations, Res~ondent's ability to pay, prior history of:compliance, degree of 
culpability, economic benefit or s~vings resulting from the violations, and such other matters as 
justice may require pursuant to thb authority of Section 309(g) ofthe Act,\33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), 
EPA and Respondent agree that ~.espondent will pay an administrative ciyil penalty in the 

I I 

I I 

I 



amount of forty-seven thousand dollars ($47,000) in full and final settlement ofEPA's claims for 
civil penalties for the violations alleged herein. . I I 

48. Respondent shall pay an administrative civil penalty offortyJe;ven thousand dollars 
($47,000) pursuant to this CAF([) within thirty (30) days ofthe effectiveidate, in the following 

manner: I II 
A. All payments by Respondent shall reference Respondent's name and address, 

and the Docke! Number of this action, cw A 03-20 13 'n 24; 

B. 

c. 

D. 

E. 

All checks sJl be made payable to "United States Treasury"; 

f 
I I 

All payments ade by check and sent by regular mail shall be addressed to: 

. II ' I U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 1l 
Fines and PenJlties 
Cincinnati Fin~nce Center 1

1 

P.O. Box 979077 , 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 I 

I 
Contact: Heaier Russell 513-487-2044 , I 

All payments made by check and sent by overnight delivery service shall be 
addressed for delivery to: : I I 

U.S. Bank 
Government LIDckbox 979077 
U.S. EPA, Fin¢s & Penalties 
1005 Conventibn Plaza 
Mail Station srl-MO-C2-GL 
St. Louis, MO 6310 1 

I 

Contact: 314+ 8-1 028 

All payments made by check in any currency drawn onlbanks with no USA 
branches shall tk addressed for delivery to: ' 

Cincinnati Finabce : 1 

I · I US EPA, MS-NWD I 
26 W. M.L. Kirlg Drive i 
Cincinnati, OH 45268-0001 I 

I 



F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

All payments made by electronic wire transfer shall b~ 4irected to: 

Federal Rese{e Bank ofNew York 
ABA= 02103p004 
Account No.j68010727 
SWIFT address= FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Strbet 
New York, Nr 1oo45 

Field Tag 420@ of the Fedwire message sh<;mld read: , 
"D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency" I 

I I I 
All electronic pa~ents made through the Automated Cleahnghouse (ACH), also 
known as Remittance Express (REX), shall b~ directed tJ: I 

US Treasury $xI Cashlink ACH Receivt;r I 
ABA = 051 03~706 I 

Account No.: B 10006, Environmental Protection Agency 
CTX Format 'Illransaction Code 22- Checking I 

! I 
Physical location of U.S. Treasury facility: I I 

I I I 5700 RivertecH Court 
Riverdale, MDI20737 I II 
Contact: Jesse rhite 301-887-6548 or REX, 1-866-234-~681 

On-Line Payment Option: I 

www.PA v.abv!PA vaov I 

Enter sfo 1.1 ij the search field. Open and rrnplete the ronn. 

Additional palent guidance is available af: 

http://www.epJgov/ocfo/finservices/make l nayment.h~m 
I -,cJ' I I 

49. Respondent shall send notice of such payment, including a copy of the check, to the 
Regional Hearing Clerk at the foiiiowing address: I 

Relional Hearing Clerk 
Mail Code: 3RCOO 

I • 

U.s

1

. EPA Regwn III 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 

-and-



Nfn.a Rivera 
Mail Code: 3RC20 
Office ofRegional Counsel 
ujs. EPA Region III 
1650 Arch Street 
PHiladelphia, PA 19103-2029 

1 

\ 

50. This CAFO shall not reli~ve Respondent of its ohligalion to comply with all applicable 
provisions of federal, state or loaallaw and ordinance, nor sh

1

all it be construed to be a ruling on, 
I I l 1 

or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit. \Nor does this CAPO 
constitute a waiver, suspension Jr modification of the requir~ments ofth1e ,CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 
1251 , et seq., or any regulations tromulgated thereunder. ] 

51. The following notice confems interest and late penalty charges t}:t~t will accrue in the 
event that any portion of the civill penalty due pursuant to this CAPO is rtof paid as directed: 

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.P.R.§ \13.11, EP~ is entitled to assess 
interest and late p~yment penalties on outstan<Fng debts o'w'ed to the United States 
and a charge to cover the costs of processing and hand) in~ a delinquent claim, as 
more fully descriBed below. Accordingly, Re~pondent's failure to make timely 
payment or to co~ ply with the conditions in this CAPO shall result in the 
assessment of late\ payment charges including 'nterest, periahies, and/or 
administrative coys of handling delinquent defts. \ 

Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this CAPO will begin to accrue on the 
I I • 

date that a copy ofthis CAPO is mailed or hand-delivered! to Respondent. 
However, EPA wil

1
11 not seek to recover interest on any amount that is paid within 

thirty (30) calendar days after the date on which such inte~est begins to accrue. 
Interest will be asJessed at the rate of the Unitdd States Treasury tax and loan rate 
in accordance witli 40 C.P.R.§ 13.1l(a). I I I 
The costs of the Akency's administrative handling of overd~e debts will be 
charged and asses~ed monthly throughout the period the dbbt is overdue. 40 
C.P.R.§ 13.ll(b).\ A penalty charge of six pe~cent per ye~rwill be assessed 
monthly on any amount which remains delinqu1ent more than ninety (90) calendar 

I 
I I 

days. 40 C.P.R. § 13.1l(c). Should assessment ofthe penalty charge on the debt 
be required, it shaJ!I accrue from the first day pdyment is dJiinquent. 31 C.P.R. § 
90 1.9( d). 1 1 

52. This Consent AgreFment and the accompanyin1 Final Ordccrlsettle and resolve 
only the civil claims for the specific violations alleged herein.[ EPA reserves the right to 
commence action against any perJon, including Respondent, in response tb 'any condition which 
EPA determines may present an ifminent and substantial end~ngerment to the public health, 
public welfare, or the environmenf" In addition, this settlemenr is subject to all limitations on the 
scope of resolution and to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18( c) of the 
Consolidated Rules ofPractice. P1~rther, EPA reserves any rights and rerriedies available to it 
under the Clean Water Act, 33 U.$.C. §§ 301 et seq., the regulktions prorriulgated thereunder, 

I I 



and any other federal laws or regulations for which EPA has ilurisdiction, to enforce the 
provisions of this CAFO, followling its filing with the Regiodal Hearing IC!Ierk. 

53. Nothing in this OAFO shall be construed as pLhibiting, altering or in any way 
eliminating the ability of EPA t~ seek any other remedies or ~anctions a~ailable by virtue of 
Respondent's violations of this q:AFO or of the statutes and ~egulations ~pon which this CAFO 
is based or for Respondent's violation of any applicable provision oflaw, except as specified in 
paragraph 52. 

54. The penalty specified above represents a civil penalty assessed by EPA and shall 
not be deductible for purposes of Federal taxes. II 

55. EPA shall have tJe right to institute a new and separate action to recover civil 
penalties for the claims made in this CAFO ifthe EPA obtains evidence that the information 
and/or representations of the Resbondent is false, or, in any rrlaterial resp1ect, inaccurate. This 
right shall be in addition to all other rights and causes of actid

1

n, civil or Jriminal, the EPA may 
have under law or equity in such event. I 

I 
56. The undersigned r

1

epresentative of the Respondent certifies that he or she is fully 
authorized by the party represented to enter into the terms and conditions! of this CAFO and to 
execute and legally bind that pi to it. 

57. All of the terms and conditions of this CAFO together comprise one agreement, 
and each of the terms and conditibns is in consideration of alllofthe othet terms and conditions. 
In the event that this CAFO, or o~e or more of its terms and conditions, i~ held invalid, or is not 
executed by all of the signatories lin identical form, or is not approved in ~uch identical form by 
the Regional Administrator or his designee, then the entire cAFO shall be null and void. 

I I 
IV. EFFECTIVE DATE I 

I I ! 58. Pursuant to 33 U.S
1

.c. § 309(g)(4) and 40 C.P.R.§ 22.45, this CAFO shall be 
issued after a 40-day public notice period has concluded and ubon filing tith the Regional 
Hearing Clerk. This CAFO will tlecome final thirty (30) days lafter issuance, 33 U.S.C. § 
1319(g)( 5), and will become effedtive on that same date, 40 C.F .R. § 22j1 (b). 



FOR RESPONDENT Baltimor;le County: 

By:~ • 

Name: f=·ne~ 1-(C)r.)c::I.A.) I 

I 

Title: Co.-)'t fk<n~JJ Of-£~ 

Date: '1119/ 3 

I 



I I 
FOR COMPLAINANT, US ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION III: 

: I 
, I 

By:/~~_________., Date: £1~? h>; r ~~csa 
Director, Water Protection Division 
U.S. EPA Region III 



BEFORE THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMEN11AL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION III j I 
1650 Arch Street 1 

__________ P_h_i-la+~-e-lp_h_i_a,_P_e_n_nsylvania 19 03-2029 

In the Matter of: 

Baltimore County 
County Office Building 
Ill Chesapeake A venue 
Suite 319 
Towson, MD 21204 

I 
Proceeding under Section 309(g)(2)(B) 
of the clean Water'.Act 

i 

I 
EPA Docket No. OIWA-03-2013-0124 

: I I 
Rerpondent : FINAL ORDER 

---------+-1 -------=- I 

, PURSUANT T<? Section ~09(g) oft~e Clean W~ter tct, as .am~nded, 33 U.S.C.§ 1319 
('CW ~), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice, and havmg determmed

1 

that the penalty agreed 
to in the Consent Agreement is b~sed on a consideration of t*e factors s,et forth in Section 
309(g)(3) of the CWA, IT IS HEI}EBY ORDERED that Respondent pay ,forty-seven thousand 
dollars ($47,000) in accordance Tth Section III of the Cons~nt Agreertie~t. 

The foregoing Consent Afeement and this ~ina! Or~er shall be liJsued after the forty ( 40) 
days public comment period descfibed at 33 U.S.C.§309(g)(4) and 40 O.F.R.§22.45(b) and upon 
filing with Regional Hearing Clerk. It will become,effectivelthirty 3 ~d~ys after issuance, 33 

U.S.C.§309(g)(5). : tal '·y--:7 i 

'/. ,. (1:/ 
AUG 0 6 1013 , / , I 

1 

'/ 

~ M. Gartin I ! 

~ Regional Adm~nistrato 1 I 

U.S. ~nvironmfntal roteet
1

ion Agency, Region III 
, I 

Date 

I 
I 

I 



CERTIFICATE OF SER~CE 

I hereby certify that on this day, I caused to be filed 'rith the Regional Hearing Clerk, 
EPA Region III, the original Cohsent Agreement and Final Order, and that copies ofthis 
document were sent to the follo~ing individual in the manndr describedi below: 

I 
I 

By first class, certified mail, return receipt requested: 

I 
Michael Field 
Baltimore County Office of Law 
Historic Courthouse 
400 Washington A venue 
Towson, MD 21204 

AUG 1 2 2013 
Date: ----------+--

I 

: II 

/7~ "'ft..-.7 I 1: 


